CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2010
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Gnegm at 7:30 p.m. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, Jouron, McDonough, Skluzacek, and Greanmegie present. Members Goss and Hayden
were absent.

Michelle Rentzsch, Director of Planning and EcoroDeévelopment, Latika Bhide and Elizabeth
Maxwell, both Planners, were present from Staff.

Mr. Greenman stated that this meeting is beinyisdel now as well as being recorded for future
playback on the City’s cable station.

Mr. Greenman said the petition 2010-07 Legendaryefleading Gym has withdrawn their petition.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 20, 2010 PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MEETING

Mr. Esposito moved to approve the minutes fromJdreuary 20, 2010 Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting as presented. Mr. Batastirorss®d the motion. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, and Greenman voted aye. Members JoMiciDpnough, and Skluzacek abstained. Motion
passed.

2010-03 CREEKSIDE OFFICE CONDOS — 850 McHenry Ave— PUBLIC HEARING
Final PUD Amendment to add an exterior trash encks

Mr. Greenman stated that the fees have been paidha sign has been posted. He said the surnogindi
property owners have been notified and the Cestdiof Publication is in the file. Mr. Greenman
waived the reading of the legal notice without chn.

Bo Strom with Charles River Development and Nangyn@ins, owner of one of the units in the
building, were present to represent the petitibtn. Strom said there are some things in one’siffifet
that they regret doing. Agreeing to have no texstiosure for this office building is one of theithhas
caused severe stress. He said they have requeskedpast to add a trash enclosure and have been
denied. Mr. Strom stated that most if not all coenoral buildings in the City have a trash enclosafre
some type. If he were to build this building todhag is certain that the City would require hinhtve a
trash enclosure. Mr. Strom added that this iditeetime that the building is completely occupidde
fails to see how having a trash enclosure is alpmolior surrounding property owners since the
landscaping has matured.

Mr. Strom said they have been maintaining the ptg@and even cleaned up the creek area which is not
their property. He is asking to be treated theesamother commercial properties in town. The



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 2

occupants use the same large residential toteathgirovided for use around town. Each occupast h
one tote while most of the homes have two suctstokdr. Strom showed an aerial photo of the prgpert
and noted the proposed location of the enclosHeesaid this property is about 4 feet below thelgra

of the surrounding properties so they would onby the roof of the enclosure and most propertiestwon
be able to see it at all. Mr. Strom showed phetasving what can be seen from the adjacent pre@serti
between the homes and also photos of the homestifremarking lot of the office building. He also
showed photos of the City’'s pump station whiclorsaked on his property.

Ms. Crimmins said she wasn't told when she purath&se unit that the trash would not be allowed
outside.

Terry Easler, 1635 Penny Lane, said he previoigdyl ladjacent to this property and was one of the
original owners to negotiate the no trash enclastifeey understood a person’s right to developrthei
property and the owner was required to providereaitenumber of parking spaces. That number would
not have been able to be met if there was a tnaslogure. Mr. Easler said the houses are stitethed

so are the neighbors. He is still concerned witlatthe garbage attracts.

Bob Brix, 867 Woodmar Drive, said he has livedhis thome since 1989 and was also part of the
original discussion. He said there currently i8dnot buffer and today’s standards would reqitite

be 30 feet between office and residential uses. Bvix said back in 1990 the City required an 8tfoo
buffer and the residents also requested a solekacrHe recalls the original agreement was to have
evergreens and when the agreement was approvegéahgreens were dropped and trees were added.
Mr. Brix said if the City is going to revisit theaish enclosure, they also need to revisit the zapiag

and screening. There was no 6 foot screeningpuliso several homes have been up for sale rgcent
only to hear from the potential purchasers thag tten’'t want the house because of the view of the
office building. Mr. Brix showed a video of thenldscaping. He would like a 30 foot
barrier/landscaping.

There was no one else in the public who wisheghéak on this petition. The public hearing was etbs
at this time.

Mr. Strom said they have 6 parking spaces over vgh@quired by code and they have never had a
parking problem. As far as animals in the garb#uey are requesting a shed-type building which
would be completely enclosed. It would be simitawhat the neighbors have in their yards. Mrotr
said there is nothing that can be done with thigasétsince the building has been there for some tim
and it met the requirements at the time. He adadadMr. Easler had no problem selling his home tha
backed up to this property.

Mr. Strom stated it was left up to staff to comewith the plantings/landscaping plan. He said that
many of the plantings that were required by stafhil make it because of the mature tree canopy.

Mr. Skluzacek asked about the trash enclosure.Sklom said they would prefer to have a shed-type
building to house the garbage totes. There woelddwindows and a roof. It would be approximately
7 foot by 8 foot. Mr. Skluzacek said he has ndfm with the request as long as it is enclosed.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 3

Mr. Batastini said he lives near the Terra Cotfacefbuildings and they always look nice. He rézal
minutes from the July 29, 1999 meeting which st#ted there was to be a 6 foot screening. Helsaid
would be ok with the request if the screening wesgalled. Mr. Batastini said he recalled from the
previous meeting that each tenant would have theaning service remove the trash. Mr. Strom #aid
hasn’t worked out. He said most businesses davé moom for the large tote and one refuses to keep
inside the space. Most of the users are smalhbasiowners who don’t have cleaning services.

Ms. Rentzsch recalled walking the property at timé. Landscaping was preferred as the neighladrs d
not want a fence. Given the existing tall trees laeavily shaded areas, sun-loving evergreens would
not do well here. Chokecherries bushes were selexd they will tolerate shady areas. Mr. Stromh sa
he didn’t ignore the requirement - he did whatfstafnted. He added that they discovered a 15 inch
sewer line that ran through his entire propertg dgranted an easement for that line as well athéor
pump house and additional dedicated right of way@ssible future expansion of McHenry Avenue.

Mr. Batastini said the neighbors will see the esgte. Mr. Strom asked what makes the shed they are
requesting any different than the shed that ishemeighboring properties.

Mr. McDonough said he is willing to support a masoenclosure with a roof and would like to see
screening added to where the enclosure is. Halabkeere are plants that could be planted thieat t
will grow. Ms. Rentzsch listed a few choices.

Mr. Strom said they have been down the masonryipsiitre. All it takes is one snowplow or a garbage
truck driver that is not careful and there goesahire structure. He said staff has requestedbitfare
with other buildings of his and the Council hasesgt with him. Mr. McDonough said his office has a
wood enclosure and it is always in disrepair. $trom said there are ways to make it look good
without going to masonry.

Mr. Jouron said he is ok with the enclosure. Hesfjons the landscaping. It seems that with many
businesses when the landscaping dies it is naacegl

Mr. Esposito said he has no problem with the emebso long as it is close to the building. Mrogt
said he will put it next to the City’s pump station

Mr. Greenman said the general consensus was thekawith the enclosure and there is a clear
message that the landscaping/screening is a proldtaradded that he has a problem with the
enclosure. He understands the problem. Mr. Greersaid what has changed is the mixture of tenants
but what hasn’t changed is this property is nexesadential. He hasn’t found a compelling reatson
change what was originally approved. He revievirsdRindings of Fact.

Mr. Strom reminded the Commissioners that the paigplan approved for RDG showed 3 office
buildings on this property which was much less hegy friendly than his one building. The problem
was the neighbors lost their dump area for unwasiigifl such as grass clippings, etc. He has been
cooperative with the neighbors and the City foreeaants, etc. Mr. Strom added that the neighbaors ha



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 4

more garbage than paper which is what these bisssdsss out. The neighbors garbage which is
mostly food, attracts more animals that these lassies.

Mr. McDonough said if they had the enclosure ptahand he would not have a problem with it. Mr.
Batastini said it makes sense what was origingdiyraeved. There are a lot of what ifs. Mr. Espmsit
preferred to continue the request and have thaqredr bring back the plan for the enclosure a3 asl
a landscape plan for them to review. Mr. Skluzaagieed.

Mr. Strom said he is not prepared to do a masamelosure. He would install a shed like the neighbo
have and landscaping.

Mr. Batastini moved to deny the Final PUD AmendnfeniCreekside Office Condos at 850 McHenry
Avenue. Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On @ll mmembers Batastini, Jouron, Skluzacek and
Greenman voted aye. Members Esposito and McDoneoigid no. Motion to deny passed.

Mr. McDonough said he agrees that there needs &ml@nclosure but he would like the petitioner to
come back with the plans. Mr. Batastini said teiguest makes total sense. They need a placedor t
trash but they also need to work with the neighbors

2010-05 CAMELOT SCHOOL — S. Congress Pkwy; E. Mairbtreet— PUBLIC HEARING

This petition was continued from the January 20,2BZC meeting.

Preliminary Plat of Subdivision, Preliminary Pladrgnit Development and variations for a Camelot
School.

Mr. Greenman stated that the fees have been paidha sign has been posted. He said the surmogindi
property owners have been notified and the Cestéiof Publication is in the file. Mr. Greenman
waived the reading of the legal notice without chn.

Christian Laden, attorney, Dwight Avram, Avram Rigts, Theresa Smith and Joseph Carter, with
Camelot School, and Frank Cuda, engineer, wereptés represent the petition. Mr. Laden said they
are requesting to subdivide off 5 acres of the @ygprate 15 acre site adjacent to the post officafo
school and dormitory. They are also requestingtians for the parking setback and also the
impervious surface coverage. Mr. Laden said theyatso requesting that the connection to the south
property be an emergency access only and not aveyadThe property is zoned “B-2” and the buildings
would be designed to look like office buildingshelproposed elevation is a masonry building with a
shingle roof. They would have between 60-75 eng#syon-site at one time.

Mr. Greenman asked how different the proposed &t@vés from the one shown. Mr. Avram said the
rendering presented is the same design but a srhailding. The architect was not able to complete
the drawings in time for this meeting.

Mr. McDonough asked about the open roof. Mr. Avigaid it is to screen the HVAC. They will have
the complete drawing at City Council. He saidfstaints the roof line reduced and there will be
dormers on the end of the building for the gym.. Rvram said they will add the stone corners to the



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 5

building and will increase the stagger in the hind

Mr. Cuda showed the site plan. He said the detentill be shared by all of the lots. There wil &
shared access point for the lots. Mr. Cuda addatithey would like to leave the proposed access as
right in right out for the bus traffic.

Mr. McDonough asked about the number of parkingepa Mr. Cuda said they have over 200. Mr.
McDonough asked what would trigger the Phase 2ipgwkMr. Avram said if the school ceases and the
buildings convert to office it would trigger theditlonal parking.

Ms. Smith showed a Power Point presentation. Jineyide therapy and resident care for autistic and
special needs children. Their schools are acaedhy the Joint Commission. Ms. Smith said thexeha
many locations throughout the country with 5 ddyosts in Illinois and 1 resident treatment center.
She said the residential program has 135 employopmurtunities and many children require one on
one teaching. There will be 60 employees in thesgaool. Ms. Smith added that the school can
accommodate up to 60 residential children who Btay 3 months to a year. Mr. Avram said the rooms
are mostly single occupancy but there are a fevblidonwoms.

Mr. Laden said this use is very beneficial to tbenmunity as well as to the retail and medical taeg
in the area.

Mr. McDonough asked the number of students pescldss. Smith said there will be 10 children per
class as well as the support staff for each child.

There was no one in the public who wished to speathis petition. The public hearing was closed at
this time.

Mr. McDonough asked about landscaping. Mr. Avraia € is not complete but it will be ready for
Final. Mr. McDonough asked if the kids go outsidés. Smith said yes but not alone. Mr.
McDonough asked if the residents stay 7 days a wktk Smith said yes and their stay is from 3 rhont
to 1 year. They do have an admissions policy.

Mr. McDonough asked why this is a good site. Musit8 said the City has a lot to offer and in a good

location. This is a good service for the communityr. McDonough asked if the Hoffman Estates site
has residence. Ms. Smith said that is a day samg! Mr. McDonough asked about the hours for the
school. Ms. Smith said from 8:15 a.m. to 2:45 p.m.

Mr. Greenman said this property is landlocked wibh much outdoor space. Ms. Smith said the
children don't all go outside at the same timee Said they have an adaptive PE program, art therap
and music therapy. They are not the traditiongld?&and music classes.

Mr. McDonough asked why they didn’t purchase #elithore property so there would not be any
variations needed. Mr. Laden said it was the ptgpevner who determined it.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 6

Mr. Batastini said the best part about this paldicbusiness park is that there is a lot of langspand
open areas. Mr. McDonough said he would almodepte have the detention area located on the
property so there would be more open space. Hetisure he would like this use in a business park.
He said the City doesn’t have many business parks.

Mr. Batastini said this school/business will creatgood number of jobs and with family coming tsitvi
the residents they will need to be close to hofetsd, etc. which is available nearby.

Mr. McDonough feels there needs to be a use vandtr a group dwelling not just for a school. Mr.
Esposito said when they were discussing dormitarieas mostly thought of as halfway houses and not
dormitories for schools.

Mr. Skluzacek said he doesn’t have a problem vinéhvariations. He asked if the petitioner had any
concerns with the conditions especially 3E regaydine road connection to the south. Mr. Avram said
they are requesting that the connection to thehsb@tan emergency access only. Mr. Batastini asked
why staff wants a road there. Ms. Maxwell said @uwanted a road connection many years ago from
the Sam’s Club property. Mr. Batastini asked Wwduld be wise to have a road connection nexteo th
school. Mr. McDonough said it would help peoplé tgethe school. Mr. Batastini said he would prefe
an emergency access. Mr. Avram said they wouldvaoit the roadway because of the children. Mr.
Skluzacek asked where the connection would be madsir. Avram said they would prefer the access
be from the shopping center and not Sam’s Club. Ni&well said a cross access agreement would be
needed. Mr. Avram said they are working on theagrent.

Mr. Jouron asked about the roof. Mr. Avram expadlithe roof line.

Mr. McDonough asked about the bus circulation ¢& sMr. Avram showed the circulation on the site
plan. Mr. Batastini added that he would prefesitig the proposed entrance when the other lots
develop because Congress Parkway curves in threat e McDonough asked how many buses are
used. Ms. Smith said some children come in taxisthe buses that are used are the smaller buses.

Mr. Batastini asked about the fencing. Mr. Avrasidshey have contacted several fence companies and
they will get the information to staff shortly. Haid it will be a metal fence but not chain link.

Mr. Batastini said this plan does not have a ladmén area and is concerned that in the futureothe
will want the same thing. Mr. Skluzacek said #tas be converted to office in the future.

Mr. Greenman is excited about the use but concesiitbdthe lot coverage and approving the variations
He believes others will request the same. Hés@ot sold on the space for the children to platy

they know their students. Mr. Greenman would prife petitioner go back to the property ownerdor
small amount of land so there won’t be a variabenause he doesn’t see a hardship for the variation
Mr. Laden said there is off-site detention. Mr.Démough said if they would need 7 to 8 acres nbt 5
the detention were on-site.

Ms. Maxwell said they can send it to the Councthwut the variation since the petitioner will need



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 7

come back for Final. Mr. Avram said that will alldhem time to speak with the property owner.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve a Preliminary PfaSabdivision of Lot 3 in the Crystal Lake Business
Center for a two-lot subdivision; a Preliminanafhed Unit Development to allow two buildings on a
zoning lot; and the Use Variation from Article 2nd Use of the Unified Development Ordinance,ltival
an Educational Service, Elementary or Secondarg@cs a Permitted Use in the “B-2” zoning distiaort
Camelot School located east of Main Street anchsofu€ongress Parkway with the following conditions

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Avram Builders LLC., received 01/18).

B. Plat of Survey (Smith Engineering, dated 01/34f@ceived 01/13/10)

C. Preliminary Engineering packet (Scheflow Engimeg dated 01/08/10, received 01/13/10).

D. Architectural Plans (K. Peterson Associatesed@1/07/10, received 01/13/10)

E. Front elevations (K. Peterson Associates, dai¢26/10, received 01/26/10)

2. A complete landscape plan shall be submitted Whié final PUD submittal which illustrates the
following:
A. The species, size and quantity of all selectadtgypes and a planting detail.
B. The plan shall provide for foundation base laage around the buildings, parking lot landscape
and perimeter landscape areas.
C. The plan shall provide the required number etdrrequired from the tree replacement
calculations.

3. Site Plan
A. Cross access should be provided with the paodble west. If possible a single shared entrance
off of Congress Parkway should be provided for ha#tcels.
B. Upon development of western parcel, proposeceoé should be converted to a right in-right
out or closed. Congress Parkway pavement markimydd be changed to a two way left turn lane
east of the entrance.
C. Sidewalk access should be provided to Congrada\@y.
D. 5 handicap parking stalls are required for ttogppsed 136 parking spaces. The H.C. stalls should
be located as closes to the public acces&blermﬂsa‘or both bundlngs as p055|ble

s+de—ef—the—tatAn emerqencv access from the propertv to the soutshall be prowded as

illustrated with the ultimate goal to “T” into the Sam’s Club property from Crystal Point
Center.

4. Architecture
A. Complete four-sided elevations shall be providaith the final PUD submittal.
B. The petitioner shall work to incorporate the gesfions from staff, which include
i. To lower the roof pitch from a 5/12 to a 4/12cpi
ii. To bring the prairie stone block up the corngfrthe end columns on the dormitory building.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 8

iii. Increase the wall plane stagger on the edoodbuilding from a 1 foot recess to a 2 foot
recess.

5. The amount of parking constructed shall be sigffit for the total number of on-site employees.

7. The petitioner shall address all of the revi@mments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building, Fire Rescue, Police, Public Works, andrding and Economic Development Departments.

Mr. Esposito seconded the motion. On roll callp@mbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2010-08 SALON MACKK - 415 Congress Pkwy- PUBLIC HEARING
Land use variation for a salon and common sign ataendment for additional wall signage.

Mr. Greenman stated that the fees have been paidha sign has been posted. He said the surnogindi
property owners have been notified and the Cestéiof Publication is in the file. Mr. Greenman
waived the reading of the legal notice without chn.

Joshua Hawkins and Kristin Shipley were preseng¢poesent the petition. Mr. Hawkins said the
building was originally a medical building. ThisIlgive people waiting for others at the medical
facility an opportunity to do something with théme. The use requires 18 parking spaces and there
adequate parking. Mr. Hawkins said the hours efrajon for the businesses in the building vary
greatly.

Mr. Hawkins said they are requesting a sign todeatied on the back of the building and it be
illuminated. The Mercy Health sign is large but llominated which is not a problem because car
lights illuminate it when they drive by. The reador the sign for the salon is because he isctrey
will be lost in this location.

Mr. Greenman asked if there were any concerns télconditions listed in the Staff report. Mr.
Hawkins said no. Mr. Greenman asked staff how dtatermined if this space is turned into ret&lb.
Bhide said it is an enforcement issue. This priygerzoned Manufacturing which allows an officeus
by right, however retail is not permitted in a “Mistrict.

Mr. Esposito said he has no problem with the refgogiswould prefer the sign not be illuminated. . Mr
Batastini and Mr. Jouron agreed.

Mr. McDonough said he is concerned with this usthiatlocation and doesn’t care for the sign.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 9

Mr. Skluzacek said he is ok with the use and caalgog with the sign if it isn’t too large. Mr.
Hawkins said they could reduce the sign to matchcie sign. Mr. McDonough said that size is more
in line with what is in the area.

There was no one in the public who wished to speathis petition. The public hearing was closed at
this time.

Mr. Greenman said the consensus of the Commissistiee sign is too large and no illumination. He
is ok with the use and is concerned if they doattdhan appropriate sign the business will gettloste.
He would prefer they meet the Common Sign Plaeriai that was previously approved.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Land Use Vaoiatb allow a hair and beauty salon; and Common Sig
Plan Amendment to allow 22-square foot wall signfag&alon Mackk and 415 Congress Parkway with the
following conditions:

1. Approved plans, to reflect staff and advisorgioiocomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Application (received 1-18-10)
B. Proposed Sign for Salon Mackk (Hughes, receiv28-10)

2. The proposed sign shall not be illuminated,ezithternally or externally.

3. The use variation is granted only to this agpltat the specified location. An increase intierisity
of the use beyond what is indicated in the appboats not permitted.

4. Any sales of related products shall be anciltarthe salon use. Retail sales are not approvéteas
primary use for this space.

5. The petitioner shall comply with all of the réguments of the Planning, Engineering and Building,
Fire Rescue, and Public Works Departments.

Mr. Skluzacek seconded the motion. On roll cakymbers Batastini, Esposito, Jouron, and Skluzacek
voted aye. Members McDonough and Greenman votedviation passed.

Mr. McDonough and Mr. Greenman voted no as theytiel sign was too large and the motion did not
address this issue.

REPORT FROM PLANNING

- 2009-59 Bryn Mawr (Thorndale) — N. Rt. 176; WyBmMawr Ln. — Rezone, Comp Amend, Annex
Agree Amend, etc.

- 2006-88 Ashwood Estates — Plat extension (3rd)

- County Request — Church on Crystal Lake Avenue

Ms. Bhide stated the next scheduled PZC meetingetmuary 17, 2010 will be cancelled and replaced



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
FEBRUARY 3, 2010
PAGE 10

with the Zoning Commission’s 6 month review of thBO. She also reviewed the items that are
currently scheduled for the March 3, 2010 PZC nmeeti

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION
There were no comments from the Commissioners

The meeting was adjourned at 10:15 p.m.



